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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SKYNET CABLE NETWORK
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%t March, 2017, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31t March, 2017, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material mis-statement,
whether due to fraud or error. -

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunaer.

We conducted our audit of the Ind _fi:r':i'éﬁé‘ié'j{j__st\atements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 14371@') the A(:‘tt_\Those Standards require that we comply with
— e, Tk
<= i T

0 \
#\«"‘.'.
v e Y




ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
inlernal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
ylve a true and falr view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonahleness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation ol Lhe Ind AS linanclal stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its profit/loss, total
comprehensive income/ loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating eff wfﬁes}'“of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
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“Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Campany has diacloaed the impnct of pending litigntions on ita financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements as
regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification
S.0. 3407(E) dated the 8 November, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period
from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016; Based on audit procedures performed and
the representations provided to us by the management we report that the disclosures are
in accordance with the books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to
us by the Management.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

NEW DELHI
Date:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

1. We have audited the accompanying Statement of Financial Results of SKYNET CABLE NETWORK
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), for the year ended 31/03/2017 (“the Statement”), being
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as modified by Circular No.
CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016.

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and approved by the
Board of Directors, has been compiled from the related Ind AS financial statements which has been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement
based on our audit of such financial statements.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Statement.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.




3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Statement:

(i) is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as modified by Circular No.
CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016; and

(i) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standards and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net profit/loss and Total

ramprehenaive incame / lnaa and ather financinl infarmatian of tha Gampany for the year
ended 31/03/2017.

(Firm's p

New Delhi
Date:



ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report an Other | egal and Regulatory Requirements’ section ot
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (“the Acl”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SKYNET CABLE NETWORK
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2017 In conjunction with our audil of the Ind
AS financial ctatomonte of tho Company for tho year ondod on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
B T
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) petlain Lo tie malntenance of records thal, Inoreasonable deldll, aeeurately and falily reflecl Lhe
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

(Membership No. 502549)

New Delhi
Date:



SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2017

Particulars Note As at As at As at
No. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(Rs. '000) {Rs. '000) {(Rs. '000)

A. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4,358.51 5,389.78 6,421.04
(b) Deferred tax assets 14 853.94 1,049.13 1,244.31
(c) Other non-current assets 4 8,078.51 9,211.03 10,343.55
13,290.96 15,649.94 18,008.90
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 5 11.27 6.02 6.02
(b) Other current assets 6 1,608.38 1,601.98 1,602.05
1,619.65 1,608.90 1,608.07
TOTAL ASSETS 14,910.61 17,257.94 19,616.97
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 7 8,150.00 8,150.00 8,150.00
(b) Other Equity (5,370.77) (4,576.01) (3,857.76)
2,779.23 3,573.99 4,292.24
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Other non-current liabilities 8 5,725.74 7,422.25 9,118.77
Total non-current liabilities 5,725.74 7,422.25 9,118.77
1. Current liabilities
(a) Financiat Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 9 3,407.99 3,407.99 3,407.99
(b) Other current liabilities 10 2,997.65 2,853.71 2,797.97
Total current liabilities 6,405.64 6,261.70 6,205.96
Total Liabilities 12,131.38 13,683.95 15,324.73
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 14,910.61 17,257.94 19,616.97

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

NS i

Director: Kunal Verma Director : Amit Singh
DIN No: 06366347 DIN No: 07537898
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Dated: Dated: Dated:



SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR. 2017

For the year ended For the year ended
Nnte Nn
Particulars
31.08.201/ 1042010
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)
1 REVENUE
(a) Revenue from operations 11 1,696.52 1,696.52
(b) Other income 12 3.00 -
2 TOTAL INCOME 1,699.52 1,696.52
3 EXPEMEES
(a) Depréeciation and amortisation expense 3 1,031.26 1,031.26
(b) Other evpenses 13 1,70G7.83 1,188.32
4 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,299.09 2,219.58
5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (2-4) (599.57) (523.06)
6 TAX EXPENSE
(a) Current tax expense 14 - -
(a) Deferred tax 4 195.19 195.19
NET TAX EXPENSE 195.19 195.19
7 PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX (5-6) (794.76) (718.25)
8 Other Compreshensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit/(Loss)
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit obligation =
- Deferred Tax on Remeasurements of the defined benefit obligation - =
Total other compreshensive income = =
9 Total Comprehensive Income for the period (7+8) (794.76) {(718.25)
10 Earnings per equity share 17
(Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
Basic (Rs. per share) -0.98 -0.88
-0.98 -0.88

Diluted (Rs. per share)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

NS

—
Proprietor Director: Kunal Verma Director : Amit Singh
Membership No. : 502549 DIN No: 06366347 DIN No: 07537898
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Dated: Dated: Dated:




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

U74140DL2011PTC228312

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2017

A. Cqulty Share Capital
For the Year Ended 31st March, 2017
(Rs. '000)
Balance as at 01st Changes in equity Balance as at 31st
April, 2016 share capital during March, 2017
the year
8,150.00 = 8,150.00

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2016
(Rs. '000)
Balance as at 01st Changes in equity Balance as at 31st
April, 2015 share capital during March, 2016
the year
WAL . R

B. Other Equity

(Rs. '000)

Reserves and Surplus

Other
comprehensive
income Total

Particulars —
Securities General

premium reserve

Retained
earnings

Actuarial Gain /
(Loss)

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2016
Premium on shares issued during the year
P&L Ind. AS

Share issue costs

ESOP compensation expense

Equity instruments of other entity

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to retained earnings

Redemption of Preference shares-CRR

Balance at the end of March 31, 2017

(4,576.01)

(794.76)

(5.370.77)

= (4,576.01)

: (794.76)

- (5.370.77)

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2016

{Rs. '000)

Reserves and Surplus

Other
comprehensive
income Total

Securities General
Particulars premium reserve

Retained
earnings

Actuarial Gain /
{Loss)

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2015
Premium on shares issued during the year
Share issue costs

ESOP compensation expense

Equity instruments of other entity

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to retained earnings

Redemption of Preference shares-CRR

Balance at the end of March 31, 2016

(3,857.76)

(718.25)

(4,576.01)

. (3,857.76)

(718.25)

- (4,576.01)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date atigth

DIN No: 06366347

Place: New Delhi
Dated:

Place: New Delhi
Dated:

-

Director: Kunal Verma

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

N Sivan
Director : Amit Singh

DIN No: 07537898

Place: New Delhi
Dated:



SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVAIE LIMLIED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
STATEMENT CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

For the ror the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (599.57) (523.06)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,031.26 1,031.26
liahilities/ evcess provisions written back (net) (3.00) -
Tiiterest mcunie vt lneunie Lax relund (4.0Y9)
424.00 - 5U8.20

Uperating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Other current non- financial assets (6.40) 0.07

Adjustments for increase / {decrease) in operating liabilities:

Current non-financial Liabilities 143.94 55.73

Trade Payable 3.00 -

Cash generated from operations 0.55 (0.00)

Taxes paid / (received) 4.69 -

Net Cash from Operating Activities 5.24 (0.00)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 0.00 0.00
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash from Financing Activities = =

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.25 0.00

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 6.02 6.02

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 11.27 6.02

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period comprise of:

Cash on Hand - .

Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 11.27 6.02

11.27 6.02

Note : The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS - 07 "Statement of Cash Flow" issued by the
Central Government under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Companies Indian Accounting

Standard Rules, 2015)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED

et

Director: Kunal Verma Director : Amit Singh
DIN No: 06366347 DIN No: 07537898
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Dated: Dated:

Dated:




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a)

First-time Ind AS adoption reconciliations

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2016 and 1 April, 2015

(Rs. '000)

As at 31 March, 2016 As at 1 April, 2015
(End of last period presented under previous GAAP) (Date of transition)
Previous Effect of Previous Effect of
GAAP** Transition to Ind| As per Ind AS GrAAIL*L’I* Transition to Ind| As per Ind AS
Particulars AS AS
A, ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
faY Preearty, vlant and eavinmant AR AT fi 471 04 i 471 N9
(b) Deferred tax assets - 1,049.13 1,049.13 {0.01) 1,244.32 1,244.31
(c) Other non-current assets 4,256.25 4,954.78 9,211.03 4,256.25 6,087.30 10,343.55
9,646.03 6,003.91 15,649.94 10,677.28 7,331.62 18,008.90
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6.02 - 6.02 6.02 6.02
(ii) Other financial assets - - - - - -
(b) Other current assets 469.46 1,132.52 1,601.98 469.53 1,132.52 1,602.05
475.48 1,132.52 1,608.00 475.55 1,132.52 1,608.07
TOTAL Assets 10,121.51 7,136.43 17,257.94 11,152.83 8,464.14 19,616.97
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8,150.00 - 8,150.00 8,150.00 = 8,150.00
(b) Other Equity (2,593.67) (1,982.34) (4,576.01) (1,506.61) (2,351.15) (3,857.76)
5,556.33 (1,982.34) 3,573.99 6,643.39 (2,351.15) 4,292.24
1. Non-current liabilities
{a) Other non-financial liabilities - 7.422.25 7.422.25 (0.00) 9,118.77 9,118.77
- 7,422.25 7,422.25 (0.00) 9,118.77 9,118.77
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables
i. total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro - N -
enterprises and small enterprises 3,407.99 - 3,407.99 3,407.99 - 3,407.99
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 1,157.19 1,696.52 2,853.71 1,101.45 1,696.52 2,797.97
4,565.18 1,696.52 6,261.70 4,509.44 1,696.52 6,205.96
10,121.51 7,136.43 17,257.94 11,152.83 8,464.14 19,616.97
Notes

Explanation for Reconciliation of Statement of Profit & Loss as previously reported under I Gaap to Ind As.

Deferrement of Activition Revenue
Activation fees received from customer has been deferred and amortised over the customer relationship period. The deferred revenue has been considered as other Non financial

liabilities.

Deferred Tax

Deferrement of activation revenue / cost has resulted in creation of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities , hence accordingly deferred tax assets / Liabilities has been recognised on

the amount deferred.

Other Equity

1 Adjustements to Retained earnings and Other Comprehensive income has

Figure as per previous I GAAleas, Be_én'reqjmupé:q- in line with the reclassification requirement of IND As and has not been considered in "Effect of Transition to Ind AS" due to Ind As.




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with ind-AS. For
periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 20186, the Company prepared Its flnanclal slatemienls in accotdance with statutory
reporting requirement in India immediately before adopting Ind AS (‘previous GAAP’).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind-AS applicable for periods ending on or after 31 March
2017, together will Ui comparative period dala as ul and for the year ended 31 March 201G, og deacribed in the summary of gignificant
accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the
Curtipaity ‘s dale uf Liansitivi Wu Ind-AS. This fule explains Lig principal adjustinents imade by the Company in restating its Indian GAAPR
financial atatements, Incliding the halance ehear ae ar 1 apell 2015 and the financlal stalements on al gand o Uie year eiasd o4 Mareh

2016,

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under
Ind AS.The Company has applied the following exemptions :

1. Ind AS 103 Business Combinations :
2. The Company has not applied Ind AS 21 retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwill from business combinations that

occurred before the date of transition to Ind AS. Such fair value adjustments and goodwill are treated as assets and liabilities of the
Company rather than as assets and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are already expressed in the
functional currency of the Company or are non-monetary foreign currency items and no further translation differences occur.

Deemed cost for Property Plant and Equipment and intangible assets:
A.1 Effect of Ind AS adoption for Balance Sheet

The effect of the company’s transition to IND AS is summarized in this note as follows:

(i) Transition elections;
(ii) Reconciliation of equity and Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to IND AS;

(iii) Adjustments to the statement of cash flows.

(i) Transition elections
The company has applied the following transition exceptions and exemptions to full retrospective application of Ind AS:

Particulars Remarks
1. Deemed cost for Property Plant and Equipment and intangible|Refer Note 3
assets:

Note : IND AS 101 does not explicitly require a summary of the transition exemptions and elections that an entity applies, but providing
this information is common. It is a matter of preference whether a discussion of the nature and effect of these exemptions and exceptions
is included here or, as illustrated below, forms part of the reconciliations of equity and comprehensive income, or elsewhere.

b) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March, 2016 and 1 April, 2015

(Rs. '000)
As at As at
01/04/2015 |31/3/2016

Particulars

6,643.39 5,556.33

Total equity (shareholders' funds) as reported under previous GAAP
(3,595.47)| (3,031.47)

Effect of activation revenue / cost being deferred and amortised over customer relationship period

1,244.32 1,049.13
(2,351.15)| (1,982.34)
4,292.24 | 3,573.99

Deferred tax adjustment on above items
Total adjustments to equity
Equity as reported under IND AS




2) Cffecl of Iad AS aduplivi un Lhe slalemenl of piufll and luss Tur Lhe year ended 31 March, 2018

(Rs. '000)
Year ended 31 March, 2016
(Latest period presented under previous
GAAP)
Particulars
Effect of
Previous GAAP | Transition to Ind AS
Ind AS *
1. Revenue
(a) Revenue from operations 0.00 1,696.52 1,696.52
(b) Other income = = -
2. | Total revenue 0.00 1,696.52 | 1,696.52
3. Expenses
(a) Content cost - - -
(b) Employee benefits expense - - -
(c) Finance costs = = :
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,031.26 - 1,031.26
(e) Other expenses 55.80 1,132.52 1,188.32
4. Total expenses 1,087.06 1,132.52 2,219.58
5. [ Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax expense (2-4) (1,087.05) 563.99 (523.06)
6. | Exceptional items - ) i
7. Profit/ (Loss) before tax (5-6) (1,087.05) 563.99 (523.06)
8. Tax expense
(a) Deferred tax 0.00 195.19 195.19
0.00 195.19 195.19
9. Profit/(Loss) after tax (7-8) (1,087.06) 368.81 (718.25)
10.| Other Compreshensive Income/(Loss)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss - = *
{(i1) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiied to Profit and - - -
Loss - Defined benefit obligation
11. | Total other comprehensive income/(Loss) = = -
12. | Total comprehensive Income /(loss) for the year (9+11) (1,087.06) 368.81 (718.25)

* Figure as per previous 1 GAAP has been regrouped in line with the reclassification requirement of IND As and has not been considered
in "Effect of Transition to Ind AS" due to Ind As.

d) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March, 2016

(Rs. '000)

Year ended 31.03.2016
Particulars (Latest period presented

under previous GAAP)
Profit/{Loss) as per previous GAAP (1,087.06)
Adjustments:
Effect of activation revenue being deferred and amortised over customer relationship period 1,696.52
Effect of activation cost being deferred and amortised over customer relationship period (1,132.52)
Deferred tax adjustment on above items (195.19)
Total effect of transition to Ind AS (718.25)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) =
Total co mprehensive income under Ind AS (718.25)
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Notes
'Explana‘tion for Reconciliation of Statement of Profit & Loss as previously reported under I Gaap to Ind As.

a

d)

Neferrement nf Activitinon Revenue / Cnst
Atlvaliun feey tecelved fron custurner /£ palld W vendur Das e denseeen] gl dimariiseed gver The castunmen relativiship period.

Deferred Tax
Deferrement of activation revenue / cost has resulted in creation of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities , hence accordingly deferred

tax assets / Liabilities has been recognised on the amount deferred.

Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2016

Particulars Previous GAAP Effect of As per Ind
transition to  AS balance
Ind AS sheet
Net Cash flows from operating activities (0.00) = (0.00)
Net Cash flows from investing activities 0.00 - 0.00
Net Cash flows from financing activities = = =
0.00 - 0.00

Net Increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.02 - 6.02
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 6.02 - 6.02




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
U74140DL2011PTC228312
MNTFS FARMTNG RART NF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background

Skynet Cable Network Private Limited is incorporated on 5th December 2011, The company primarily engaged in providing cable television distribution and other related services. It is a
subsidiary of DEN Networks Ltd . which is a company listed on NSE & BSE

Significant accounting policies

2.01 Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of Complinnce and basis of preparation
The financial stetements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Upto the year ended 31 March, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Indian GAAP, WRIEN MCILLES Sldildids Hullfled under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. This is the Company first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April, 2015. Refer Notes for the details of

first-tirme adoption exemptions availed by the Company,

(ii) Basis of preparation and measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services

Fair value is the price that would be recelved ta sell an asset or paid to transfer & liakility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardtess of
whether that price is direqtly shservable or estimated using another valuation technlque. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or lability i market participants would take those characteristics Into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similanties to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind

AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair vaiue measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability

2.02 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An assodiate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies,

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have jeint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture & Initially recognised in the batance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
assoriate or joinl venture. Distributions received from an associate or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When tha Company's share of losses of an
associate or @ joint venture exceeds the Company's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, furm part of the Company's
net investrnent in the associate or joint venture), the Company discontinues recagnising its share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture,

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the peried in which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Company determines whether there any is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the net investment in an associate or a joint venture and that event (or events) has an impact an the estimated future cash flows from the net
investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary o recoghise impairment loss with respect to the Company

investment 1n an associate or a joint venture,

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset_by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases

The Company discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Company retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Company measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded 25 its fair value tri initial recognition 1n accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture isincluded in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Company accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities, Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on th‘e
quity to profit or loss (as @ reclassificglion adjustment) when the equity method is

discontin ued.



v mecthod whan an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a jolnt venlure o an \avestment 10 a joint venture becomes an

The Company conlinues Lo use the cquit
t to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests

investment 1n an associate. There is no remeasuremen

the equity method, tne Lutipdity Jeulsssifivy to protit oF 1y e

WHILIE LR LOHHPAHY TUUULEs s Uwnit il il o 8 i AR BREREIRTD 7 ) inint wantnra hit the Company sentinues to use
t reduclion 11 GWRELSIIP HiwesL 17 Uil v ar leeg weonld ba

proportion of the gai ur luss thal had pievioualy been recognicad in nthar ramprehensive income relating to tha
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities

nture of the Company, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are

When a Company entity transacts with an associate or a joint vel
t of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Company.

recognised in the Company’s financial statements only to the exten

2.03 First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

Overall principle
ng all assets and liabilities whose rccognition is required by
GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, und applying Ind

The Company has prepared he opening balance sheet v per Ind AS as of April 1, 2015 (the transitinn rate) by recognisi
namptinns availed hy the Company as detailed

lrmlltq, nnt rarngnising irems nf Assets ar liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous
AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject o tne tetidii eaLeplivin end caiLain optional g;

below

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and fin
date).

ancial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2015 (the transition

Classification of debt instruments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and

dreumstances that existed as of the transition date

Impairment of financial assets

s used reasonable and supportable information that
d in order to compare it with the credit risk at the
to Ind ASs, whether there have been

< of Ind AS 102 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it ha:
the credit nsk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognise
haustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition

The Company has applied the impaiment reguirement
i available without undus cost or effort to determine
transition date. Further, the Company has not underiaken an ex
significarit increases in credit nsk singe initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101,

Past business combinations

The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the transition date of 1 Aprit, 2015.

Consequently,

51 business combinations as in its previous GAAP financial statements;

+ The Comparny has kept the:same classification for the pa
=re not recognised in accordance with previous GAAP in the balance shee

« The Company has not recognissd assels and liabuiities that w
recognition in accardance with Ind AS In the separate balarice sheet of the acquiree;

« The Company has sxcluded from its opening palance sheet those items recognised in accordance with previous GAAP that do not qualify for recognition as an asset or liability under
Ind AS;

+The Company has tested the goodwill for impairment at the transitio
+ The effects of the above adjustments have been given to the measur

t of the acquirer and would also not qualify for

n date based on the conditions as of the transition date;
ement of non-controlling interests and deferred tax.

pplied to past acquisitions of investments in associates, interests in joint ventures and interests in joint

The above exemption in respect of business combinations has also been a
as defined in Ind AS 103.

sperations in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business,

Deemied cost for property, plant and equinment, Investment property, snd intangible assets
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, investment property, and intangible assets recognised as of 1 April, 2015 (transition

date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement c
contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

ontains a Lease to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition date

Equity investments at FVTOCI

The Company has designated investment in equity shares as at FVTOCI on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at the transition date

Trea tment of exchange differences

The exchange differences arising on settlement / restal
The Company has availed the exemption and continue the policy ado
reco gnised in the financial statements for the period ending immediatt

into Statement of Profit and Loss.
g from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items
as per the previous GAAP , i.e 31.03.2016.

tement of long-term foreign currency monetary items are taken
pted for accounting for exchange differences arisin
ely before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting periot

2.04 VUse of estimates

conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets ar_1d
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial

The preparation of the financial statements in
ual results and the estimates are recogrused in the

labilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The
siatements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the act

paricods in which the results are known / materialise

2.05 Cash and cash equivalents (for purpose of Cash Flow Statement)
(asky comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
scquuisition) and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into ki ounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value

4%
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2.07

2.08

2.09

) ts adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby Profit before tax reported under statement of profit/ (loss
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on

any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
available information.

Property, plant and equipment

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of alt of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date)

measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
All the items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost net off cenvat credit less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items

is probable that future economic benefits associated with

ying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
t accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when

f the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any componen
uring the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carr
the item will flow to the Company and the cost ©
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss d

gement of the Company on the basis of valuation by expert valuers, less

Intangible assets acquired in business combinations are stated at fair value as determined by the mana
e reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is

accumulated amortisation. The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period art
revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

ruction) less thelr residual values over their useful lives, using the
except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose
nased on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions
changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
d, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

aet of assets (other than freehold land and properties under const

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
ken in accordance with Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013

straight-line method. The estimated useful life is ta
case the life of the assets has been assessed as undar
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological

depreciation method are reviewed at the end af each reporting perio

a, Headend and distribution equipment 6 -15 years

b. Set top boxes (STBs) 8 years

c Office and other equipment 3 years

d Furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years

e Vehicles 6 years

i Leasehold improvements Lower of the useful life and the period of the lease.

g. Fixed assets acquired through business 5 years as estimated by an approved valuer
purchase

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and 1s recognised in profit or foss

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible

or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

An intangible asset 1s derecognised on disposal,
t disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

asset, measured as the difference between the nel

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method as follows:

a. Distribution network rights 5 years
b. Software 5 years
Cc. License fee for internet service Over the period of license agreement
d. Non compete fees 5 years

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of sach reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amaunts of Its tangitie and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss, If any such mdication exists, the racoversble amount of the ssset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (If any).
When it Is not possitle to estimate the recaverable amount of an (ndividual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs, When a reasonable and consistent basic of allocation can be identified, corporate assats are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated

to the smallest Company of tash-generating units for which a reassnable and consistent aliocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the

asset may be impaired

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
e risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and th
not been adjusted
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment joss s recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, butiso
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fare value of consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue are net of return, trade allowances, rebates, service taxes and amount
collected on behalf of third parties

The company recognizes revenue when the amount of reveniue tdit Ui tellably tieasuied, L 13 proBapin thal Ul w s i Fenefits vill flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been mapped for each of the ¢OMpary & dllivitles as e riled beleye. 1he company bavue it estimaras nn histarical resuits, taking intn consideration the type of customer, the type ui

transoctian And npsdfics Wl 2arh Arrangements,

i Rendering of sarvices

1. Service revenue comprises subscription income from digital and analog subscribers, placement of channels, advertisement revenue, fees for rendering managgment,
technical and consultancy services and other related services. Income from services is recognised upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the
customers. Period based services are accrued and recognised pro-rata over the contractual period.

2. Activation fees on Set top boxes (STBs) is recognised on activation of boxes over the life of the STBs. Activation fees received in advance 1s deferred over the period of
life of the STB and has been considered as deferred revenue.

3. Amounts billed for services In accordance with contractual terms but where revenue is not recognised, have been classified as advance billing and disclosed under
current liabilities

4. Revenue from prepaid internet service plans, which are active at the end of accounting period, is recognised on time proportion basis

il Sale of goods (equipment)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the foltowing conditions are satisfied:

a) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

b} the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

¢) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and
e) the costs incurred or to be incurred In respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

Other income

Dividend income_and interest income

Divigend IncOme anc INLErest DLV T

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured rgliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition

Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds, being the difference between the sales consideration and carrying value of investments

Share-based payment arrangements

Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding
the determination of the fair vaiue of equity-settled share-based transactions.

The fair valuz determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
Instruments expectad to vest. The impact of the revision of the onginal estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-sattied employee banefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or l0ss for the year.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The functional currency for the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. For the Company, the functional currency is the local
currency of the country in which it operates, which is INR.

In preparing the financial statements the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denpminatad e urrancies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at_that date
Non-monetary items carried at fair vatue that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 1 E\,@ﬁﬂp‘ﬁﬂmg at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of tustorical cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated/, '::/'/ B %
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Treatment of exchange differences

The exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of long-term foreign currency monetary items are taken into Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

ction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
d from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
ncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transa
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss) are added to or deducte
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or fina

immediately in profit or loss

Investment in Subsidiaries

WHUH Likd QULIPay Dine piioc we ol Bho ankily, ir nvpacard,nr has rinhts variahle returns from its involvement with

4 subsidiary is an entity controlled by Lhe Company Lontrol &5t
y Power is demanstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those

theentity and has the ability to affect those returns by wsing ks power over entit
which significantly atlect the

entity's returns Investmants [n subsidiaries are carried at cost. The cost com|
has adoptad optional axteplivi under TND AD 101 to fair valug invastment in sihsidiaries at fair value.

prises price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost Un transition to LNL Ab, Uik Luttipuity

Investment in joint ventures and associates

ave rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control 1s the
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. An
rticipate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

A joint venture is @ ype af joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint controi of the arrangement h
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to pal
but is not control or Joint control over those policies.

The investment in joint ventures and associates are carried at cost. The cost comprises price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost

Financial assets

rinanclal dssels

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets

that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

lassification of financi =
Dabt Instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured

Joss on initial recognition):
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to coliect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal an

at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or

d interest on the princtpal amount outstanding

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as

at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

ractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

« the asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is achieved both by collecting cont
lely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sQ
ents, For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as

financial assets measured at amaortised cosl. Thus, the exchange differences on the amartised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognised I other comprenensive INCome and atcumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the

investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previcusly accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Interest income Is recognised In profit or |oss for FYTOCE debt instrum

For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

Effective t meth
The effective interest method (s 3 method of calculating the amdrtised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and IS

included in the “Other income” line item,

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present Lhe subsequent changes \n far value In other comprehensive
income pertaining o investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at
fair value plus trarsaction cosis. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and lpsses arising from changes in fair value recogmsad In ather comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for 2quity instruments through other comprehensive \ncome’. The cumulative gain or [0ss 15 not reclassified to profit or loss on dispusat al the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financiat instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

= it is @ derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument.or a financial guarantee.




Fi ala at fajr val ugh profit or loss (FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes In fair value mn other
compraharive innme for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (see note 3.24.3 above)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVUTPL. In addition, debt instruments thal meet the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or 105585 arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
T T R R IR A LY dividond nrararart @iened nn e Tdog igl Asset snd is inciuded in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL
ot gridoe ] whie (i Gurgeny'a right e rocaive tha Aividenre Is petahlished, |t (8 DIObELIE Uil dik sununiv boochits saapalatiy s vl wlll fluyy 4o the antity, Fha
dividend does not reprasent a recavery or parL uf Lust uf Ui liivesliment and the amaun, o divithen] san bie ot wired reliably,

Impaiiment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt Instrurents at M'VTOCL, lease receivahles,
trade receivables, other contractual rlghls Lu recerve cash or vlhuer financial asset, and finanrial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company In sccordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial Instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowante for a financial instrument at an amount eoual to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantty since initial recagnition. If the credit risk on 2 financial Instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrurnent at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expacted credit losses and
represent the lifetime cash shartfalls that will resull If defauit occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12

months,

ous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previ
d to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss

the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compare
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant incriease In credit nisk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring
over the expected life of the finangial instrument instead of the change in the ameunt of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument a5 at the reporting date with the risk of & defsult cecurring on the financial instrumernt as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable infarmation, that s available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in cradit risk since Initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the
Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit 10ss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt mstruments at FYTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Cempany derecagnises a financial assel wnen the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the asset axpire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset [o another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains cubstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises iis retained |nterest in the asset and an associated liability for amaunts It may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial asset, the Company continues 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received

sideration received and receivable and the cumulative

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the con
loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been

gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no fonger recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

- For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship

« Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

change gains and losses, FVTOCI debt Instrw ragied as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange
sneial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income

« For the purposes of recognising foreign ex
differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by 2 Company entity are classified as either financial [fa&iitiE in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
./’_F



Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a restdual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments 1s recognised and deducted directly in equity., No gain or loss 15 recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments

Finangcial ligbilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL,

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, finan_ci_al guaranl;ee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting

policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

= such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or

= it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind
AS 109

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, uniess the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change
in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income

are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subseguently measured at_amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods_. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs

of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest ra_zte
1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective intere;t rate, tr»a_nsact:on
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company entity are initialty measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of

» the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

= the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a befow-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher

of:

= the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
= the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18

Foreign exchanae gains and losse
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is delermue hat foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For

financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange DWQB rt of the fair value gains or lasses and is recognised in profit or loss
Y, |"‘l
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2.16

Derecoanition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelied or have expired, Ar exchange between with 3 lender of debt
Instrumments with substantially différent terms s accounted for as an extinguishment af the originat financial liability and the recognitian of 2 new financial liability. Similarly, a
~uhetantial madificatan nf the terms of an existing financial liability (whether ar not attributable to the financial difficuity of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. “The difference belivesn the carrying amounL ur Lie iisical Hlublity Jenccoaniagd ang tha soncidararing fair and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions:

t eredlt methpd, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end

For dafined benelit retirement berefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected uni
to the asset celing (if applicable) and the return on plan assets

af eacty annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comiprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes
faxcluging Het IRLarssl), s feiecied Hnkdiaiely b e bulunce aheet with 3 gharga or rradit rarngnised in ather camprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Remezsurement recoanised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reciassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised I ProfiL
or lass in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest |s calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined

benefit costs are categorised as follows:

a service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
b net interest expense or income; and

[ remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as
past service costs

resents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans, Any surplus resuiting from this

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet rep
ble in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits availa

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A Jiability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in

respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date,

Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefil plans

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

wnen the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the contributions are linked to service,
as foliows®

. If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or

from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

sts. For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of
ntributions to periods of service using the attribution method
bution that is independent of the number of years of service,
ervice cost by attributing contributions

o If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service co
years of service, the Campany reduces service cost by attributing the col
required by Ind AS 19.70 for the gross benefits. For the amount of contri
the Company reduces service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered / reduces s
to tHe employees’ periods of service in accordance with Ind AS 19.70.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as

operating leases

The Company as lessor

d as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognise
g in respect of the leases.

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment outstandin
Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line _with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of
| statements as a finance lease obligation

payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the financia

Lease payments are apportionad betwean finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Ii_ability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Company general palicy an borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

e relevant lease, Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of th
uch benefits accrue, Contingent

expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which s
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised &s &

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
i sis is more representative of the tine pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.

ivi.Ma, 502548
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2.20

2.21

2.22

parrawlny v le

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualityiny assels, whith sie usacty that necoccarihy take 3 snhstantial perind of time to get ready
tor tneir Ihtended use vl sale, Bré dBBLY LU LHU LULL LT Lhtise hias 1, kil sy time Bg the oreabe 3ra cuhstantiallv ready far their intended use or sale

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendituré on qualltylily essets 13 deducted fiom the harrnwing rasts elinible for
capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

Basic sarnings per share is computed by dividing Uk jnit 7 (loss) oftar tan (ocludieeg L RASE 1IN W WAL/ suidibin g 1o, TF any) Ry the maighter averane nimber of equity
GHiALES Uulstundliy Jusiina Sha yaee o anmge. nar share v romnitard By dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (Including the post tax effect of extraoranary s, |1 8ny) as

adjusted for dividend, Interest and other charges Lo expense or income {riel uf any sllibitable toxes) rolating t6 Eha UIULIVE jiiiial by, Jludasy Ly She ofHin wRrane nimhrr
ol BAUIEY LHATU Crnmamsie G Tl b, seinines gar Cheen aaf the wainhted Averate nUMber of gauity shares which could have besn |asied on the conversion of all diutive
putnlal soily ahneey Patantial eouity ehares are Aeerme 1) b dilutive only (| ther conVersian W eyulty shaies sould deerenon tRO UL LTI it st e Fia wwbnuing erdinang
aparations, Notontial dilutive ety shares are deemed to be converted as at the BEQIIING U Uik peilud, wiless thay ROVE DU I ol al adnier dnte. Tha dilgsiie prrentlal Bty
shargs are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {1.e. average markel value ul Lhe cutatanding shargo), Ditutlve prtentinl gguity shares
are determined Independently for gach period presented, The numper of equity shares and patentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverss share splits and
bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temparary Gitferences between the carrying amounts of assels and labilities in the financial statemeants snd the correspanding tex bases used in the
computation of taxahle profit. Deferred tax liabilitles are generally recognised for all taxable temparary differences., Deferrad tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent thal it is probatle that taxable profits will be avallable against which those deductibie temparary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabillties are not recognised Il the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in @ Dusiness combination) of assets and liabilites in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nop The accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of

goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences sssociated w ‘h inwvestments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Campany Is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it |5 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and Intaresls are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the henefits of the temporary differances and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seltle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it 1s virtually certain

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Share issue expenses

of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for

Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52
s expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

utilisation in the Securities Premium Account, Share issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securities Premium Account,if any i

Fair value measurement

ransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an
ascal or 2 liability acting in their best economic Interest. The Company used
sidering the expected | profit in case of financial assets or liabilities

Eair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an oraina
asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that market participants would u
valuation technigues, which were appropriate in circumstances and for which sufficien




2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

Insurance claims

insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is
reasonabie to expect ultimate collection

Service tax input credit

Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing/ utifising the
credits.

Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Current and non Current classfication :

i The assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are based on current/ non - current classification. An asset as current
when it is:

1 Expected Lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

2 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

3 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

4 Cash or cach equivalents uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non - current

i A liability is current when:

1. Expected to be settied in normal operating cycle

2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

3. Due o be sattled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

4 There |s ro unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are treated as non - current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non - current assets and liabilities

Recent accounting pronouncements

2.28.1 Standards issued but not yet effective
In March 2017. the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2017, noifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statermnent of cash flows’ and

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers These amendments are in accordance with the recent amendments made by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 1o 1AS 7,

‘Statement of cash flows and IFRS 15 Revenue from contracls wilh customers respectively The amendments are applicable to the Company from April 1, 2017 and April 1, 2018 respectively

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of & reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the

balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.
The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated

Ind As 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

tnd As 115 was issued in Febuary 2015 and estatiishes a five step model to account for revenus arising from the contract with customrs. Under Ind AS 115 revenue is
recognised at an amount that refiects the consideration o which an enlity expects to be entitled in the exchange for transferring goods or servics to a customer. The new
revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recongnition requirements under nd As. This standard will come into fgree from accounting period commencing on or
after 1st April, 2018. The company will adapt the new standard on the required effective date. Duning th current year, the Company is evaluating the requirements of the
amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated

M.Ng, 532548
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SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment (Rs. '000)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Carrying amounts of :
Plant and equipment -
Set top boxes* 4,358.51 5,389.78 6,421.04
4,358.51 5,389.78 6,421.04
(Rs. '000)
Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Total
Set top boxes* Fixtures
Deemed cost**
Balance at 1 April, 2015 6,421.04 - - 6,421.04
Additions - - E -
Disposals - - - =
Balance at 31 March, 2016 6,421.04 > - 6,421.04
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - <
Balance at 31 March, 2017 6,421.04 - - 6,421.04
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April, 2015 - - - NA
Depreciation expenses (1,031.26) = - (1,031.26)
Elimination on disposals of assets - B -
Balance at 31 March, 2016 (1,031.26) - = (1,031.26)
Depreciation expenses (1,031.26) - - (1,031.26)
Eliminated on disposals of assets . - - -
Balance at 31 March, 2017 (2,062.53) = Z (2,062.53)
Carrying amount
Balance at 1 April, 2015 6,421.04 = - 6,421.04
Additions - - = =
Disposals - - - =
Depreciation expenses (1,031.26) = = (1,031.26)
Balance at 31 March, 2016 5,389.78 - - 5,389.78
Additions = = - -
Disposals = - - -
Depreciation expense (1,031.26) = = (1,031.26
Balance at 31 March, 2017 4,358.51 - - 4,358.51
A e s
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SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)
4. Other non-current assets
Other non-financial assets
a. Capital advances 4,256.25 4,256.25 4,256.25
b. Prepaid expenses 3,822.26 4,954.78 6,087.30
8,078.51 9,211.03 10,343.55
5. Cash and cash equivaients*
a. Cash on hand - =
b. Balance with scheduled banks
in current accounts 11.27 6.02 6.02
11.27 6.02 6.02
6. Other current assets
Other non-financial assets
3. Prepaid expenses 1132.52 1133.01 1133.78
a. Balance with government authorities
i CENVAT credit receivable 475.86 468.97 468.27
1,608.38 1,601.98 1,602.05
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SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR 2017

Puiliculors

7. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

9,00,000 (31,03,2016: 9,00,000, 01.04,2015: 9,00,000) Equity

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP

8,15,000 (31.03.2016: 8,15,000, 01.04.2015: 8,15,000) Equity

Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up

A3 ot Ao ot
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
{Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)

9,000.00 9,000.00

8,150.00 8,150.00

__ 835000

_8,150.00_

a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2017 and
March 31,2016 is set out below:

Ac at
01.04.2015
(Rs. '000)

9.000.00

8.150.00

8,150.00

(Rs. '000)
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No of Amount No of Amount
Numbers of shares at the Beginning 8,15,000 8,150.00 8,15,000 8,150.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - -
Numbers of shares at the End 8,15,000 8,150.00 8,15,000 8,150.00
b) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:
{Rs. '000)
Particufars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No of Amount No of Amount
Amogh Broadband Services Pvt. Ltd. - - 8,15,000 8,150.00
Den Networks Limited (Holding 8,15,000 8,150.00
c) Number of Shares held by each shareholder having more than 5% shares:
Particutars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
_ No of shares %o No of % Holding
Amogh Broadband Services Pvt. Ltd - - 8,15,000 100.00
Den Networks Limited (Holding Company) 8,15,000 100.00 &

d) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. Equity Shareholders are eligible to dividend proposed by the Board of Directors as approved by Shareholders in the ensuing Annual

e) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Particulars Securities General Equity-settied Redempti Retained Actuarial
premium reserve employee on earnings Gain /
benefits Reserve {Loss)
Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2016 = - - - (4,576.01) (4,576.01)
Premium on shares issued during the year - - - - -
Share issue costs - - - -
ESOP compensation expense - - - - -
Equity instruments of other entity = - - = =
Transfer to retained earnings € = B (794.76) (794.76)
Redemption of Preference shares-CRR - - - - -
Balance at the end of March 31, 2017 = - = “ (5,370.77) = (5,370.77)
Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Particulars Securities General Equity-settled Redempti Retained Actuarial
Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2015 - - (3,857.76) - (3,857.76)
Premium on shares issued during the year = - .
Share issue costs -
ESOP compensation expense - - B
Equity instruments of other entity - . - =
Transfer to retained earnings (718.25) {718.25)
Redemption of Preference shares-CRR - - =
Balance at the end of March 31, 2016 = = - = (4,576.01) - (4,576.01)




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR 2017

Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000) (Rs.)
8. Other non-current liabilities
a. Deferred revenue 5,725.74 7,422.25 9,118.77
5,725.74 7.422.25 9,118.77
9. Trade payables
Trade payables - Other than acceptances
a. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - =
a. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Payable for goods and services* 3,407.99 3,407.99 3,407.99
3,407.99 3,407.99 3,407.99
10. Other current liabilities
Other non financial liabilities
a. Deferred revenue 1,696.52 1,696.52 1,696.52
b. Statutory Liablities 8.25 329.24 328.24
c. Other payables
i  Advances from customers* 18.20 18.20 74.95
i Others 1,274.68 809.75 697.27
2,997.65 2,853.71 2,797.98
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SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR 2017

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)

11. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

3. Operating revenue 1,696.52 1,696.52
1,696.52 1,696.52
12, OTHER INGCOME
a. fther Income
I, LidUiliUes; waLusy pruvisiuis it bugk 300 =
3.00 =
13. OTHER EXPENSES
a. Consultancy, professional and legal charges* 94.00 34.50
b. Insurance 0.49 1.26
c. Rates and taxes 40.79 20.00
d. STB Activation charges 1,132.52 1,132.52
e. Miscellaneous expenses 0.03 0.04
1,267.83 1,188.32
* Consultancy, professional and legal charges includes Auditor's remuneration as under :
a. Payment to Auditors
For Statutory Audit 5.00 5.00

5.00 5.00




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)
Current Tax:
Current Income Tax Charge ~ =
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year origination and reversal of 195.19 195.18
temporary differences
195.19 195.18
Total Tax Expense recognised in profit and loss
account 195.19 195.18

(i) Movement of Deferred Tax for 31.03.2017 (Rs. '000)

Year ended
31.03.2017

Particulars Opening Balance Recognised Regognised Closing balance

in profit and in OCI
Loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Other financial asset (2,106.69) 391.94 (1,714.75)
(2,106.69) 391.94 - (1,714.75)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Other financial asset 3,155.82 (587.13) 2,568.69
3,155.82 (587.13) - 2,568.69
Net Tax Asset (Liabilities) 1,049.13 (195.19) - 853.94
(b) Movement of Deferred Tax for 31.03.2016 (Rs. '000)
Year ended
31.03.2016
Particulars Opening Recognised Regognised Closing balance
Balance in profit and in OCI
Loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Other financial asset (2,498.64) 391.95 (2,106.69)
(2,498.64) 391.95 (2,106.69)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Financial Assets 3,742.95 (587.13) 3,155.82
Other Items - - =
3,742.95 (587.13) - 3,155.82
Net Tax Asset (Liabilities) 1,244.31 (195.18) - 1,049.13
(¢) Numerical Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate :
As at March 31, 2017  As at March
Particulars Amount Tax Rate Amount Tax Rate
Profit Before tax from Continuing Operations (599.57) 29.87% (523.06) 30.90%
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate (179.09) (161.63)
Current Year Losses for which no deferred Tax Asset is recognised 179.09 161.63
Changes in recognised deductible temporary differences (195.19) (195.19)
Income Tax recognised In P&L from Continuing
Operations (Effective Tax Rate) 195.19 195.19 )




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15

Related Party Disclosures

1. List of related parties
a Holding Company
1 DEN Networks Limited
2 Amngh Rroadhand Service Private | imited (Holding Company till 31st March 2018)

II. Transactions/ outstanding balances with related parties during the year
{Figures in bracket relates to previous year)

(Rs. '000)
Particulars Den Networks Amogh Grand total
Ltd. Broadbannd
Services Private
Ltd.
A. Transactions during the year
i. Digital Activation Cost
For the Year ended 31 March 2017 1,132.52 - 1,132.52
For the Year ended 31 March 2016 (1,132.52) = (1,132.52)
A. Outstanding balances at year end
i. Other Current Liabilities =
As on 31 March 2017 813.07 329.25 1,142.32
As on 31 March 2016 (736.31) (329.24) (1,065.55)
As on 1 April 2015 (662.04) (662.04)
ii, Deferred Activaiton Cost
As on 31 March 2017 4,954.78 - 4,954.78
As on 31 March 2016 (6,087.30) - (6,087.30)
As on 1 April 2015 (7,219.82) - (7,219.82)
ii. Trade Payable Others
As on 31 March 2017 - 3,357.00 3,357.00
As on 31 March 2016 - (3,357.00) (3,357.00)
As on 1 April 2015 - (3,357.00) (3,357.00)

WRBH
R Y
F




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16

17

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 on ‘Employee Benefits’
Employee benefit plans
The company doesn't incurred the employees benefits expenses during the financial year 2015-16 & financial year 2016-17. Therefore
the company have not recognised the provision for define gratuity plan.
Earnings per equity share (EPS)*
(Rs. In '0OUU)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
a.  Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to Owners of the Company (794.76) (718.25)
b. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used in computation of basic EPS 8,15,000 8,15,000
c.  Basic earning per share from continuing operations (0.98) (0.88)
d. Weighted average number of equity shares and equity equivalent shares outstanding used in 8,15,000 8,15,000
e.  Diluted earning per share from continuing operations (0.98) (0.88)
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(a)

(b)

"Finzncial Instruments -

Financial risk management objective and policies

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of
significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in

respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

As at 31 March, 2017

(Rs. '000)

Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value

Cash and cash equivalents 11.27 11.27
= 11.27 11.27

Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value

Trade payables 3,407.99 3,407.99
- 3,407.89 3,407.99

As at 31 March, 2016

\ns. wuuy

Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value

Cash and cash equivalents 6.02 6.02
= 6.02 6.02
Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value

Trade payables 3,407.69 3,407.89
3,407.99 3,407.9¢9
As at 31 March, 2015

(Rs. '000)
Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value

Cash and cash equivalents 6.02 6.02
= 6.02 6.02
Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value
Trade payables - 3,407.99 3,407.99
- = 3,407.99 3,407.99

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and
advances from Custormers. The Company's principal financial assets include Investment, loans and advances, trade and other
receivables and cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk
and liguidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financia! assets will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity
risk. Financial Assets affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term
debt obligations with floating interest rates

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits s

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with
the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities are
reviewed by the Management on regular basis.

Liquidity Risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.The Company's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, Letter of Credit and working capital limits.

As at March 31, 2017

<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Current
Trade Payable 3,407.99 3,407.99
Total 3,407.99 - E - 3,407.99

As at March 31, 2016

<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Current
Trade Payable 3,407.99 3,407.99
Total 3,407.99 - - - 3,407.99




SKYNET CABLE NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL S1ATLMLNI1YS

19 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard continuity,
maintain a strong credit rating and hcalthy capital ratios in order to support its busincss and provide adequate return to shareholders thratigh

continuing growth.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the

financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity and internal accruals.

20 POST REPORTING EVENTS
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of financial statements

21 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2017 were approved by the Board of Directors on ( ). The management
and authorities have the power to amend the Financial Statements in accordance with Scction 130 and 131 of The Companies Act, 2013

22 In the opinion of the Management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances are of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course of business.

23 The Board of Directors of the company is chief operating desicion maker (CODM), which monitors the operating result of the company. CODM
has identified only one reportable segment as the company is providing cable television network and allied services only. The operations of the
Company are located in India.

24 Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

As per notification No. G.S.R.308(E) dated 30th March, 2017 regarding disclosure of specified bank notes, the details of specified bank note held and
transacted during the period from 08th Nov, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 is provided as follows:

(in Rs.)
Other
Particulars SBNs* Denomination Total
Notes
Closing cash in hand as at November 08, 201¢ Nil Nil Nil
(+) Permitted receipts Nil Nil Nil
(-) Permitted payments Nil Nil Nil
(-) Amount deposited in Ban Nil Nil Nil
Closing Balance as at December 30, 2016 Nil Nil Nil

*For the purpose of this note, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' denotes old 500, 1000 currency notes, as defined in the notification of the Government of India, in the
Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S. O. 3407, dated the 8th November, 2016

25 Certain Debit/Credit balances included in non-current assets, current assets, non-current liabilities, current liabilities are pending for
confirmation and consequential reconciliation.

26 Sundry debtors/ advances as at balance sheet date in view of management represent bonafide sums due by debtors for services arising on or
before that date and advances for value to be received in cash or in kind respectively. The balances however are subject to confirmation from
respective parties except related parties who have confirmed the balance outstanding in their account.

27 The financial statements of the company have been prepared on a going concern basis in view of the continuing financial support from holding
company. Persuant to TRAI notification Digital Addressable System (DAS) has been implemented in the territory of the Company under phase-
III w.e.f. 01 Jan, 2016.The company does not have enough resiurces to digitalize its area. However, the management is taking continuous
efforts to sustain its business operations in the territory along with the parent company support.
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